
Wednesday, 11 May 2022 

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Delegated Executive Decisions 

On Thursday, 19 May 2022, on the rising of the meeting of the Management Team, the 
following report(s) will be considered under powers delegated to Portfolio Holders, the Chief 
Executive and Directors for the discharge of the Council’s Cabinet functions carried out within their 
area of responsibility. 
 
Copies of these reports have been sent to the relevant Portfolio Holders (and all Members of the 
Cabinet for information), the Chief Executive, all Directors and the Monitoring Officer. 
 
Cabinet Members, or any of the other consultees, may object to the report within five working days 
- by 5.00 p.m. on, Wednesday, 18 May 2022 - by notifying the Officer named on the report of the 
objection and requesting that the matter be referred to the next meeting of the Cabinet for 
determination. 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  SUPPORTING A FAIRER SOUTH LAKELAND:  3 - 32 

 To consider a proposal for two new funds, designed to mitigate financial 
hardship and promote financial resilience in South Lakeland. 

 

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number) 

There are no items in this part of the agenda. 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



South Lakeland District Council 

Delegated Executive Decisions 

Date of Proposed Decision: Thursday, 19 May 2022 

Supporting a Fairer South Lakeland: 

 

Portfolio:   Health, Wellbeing and Poverty Alleviation Portfolio Holder 

Decision Maker: Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources 

Report Author: Simon Blyth – Strategy Specialist 

Wards:  (All Wards); 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

Links to Council Plan Priorities: Delivering a Fairer South Lakeland:  

Working across boundaries – N/A 

Delivering a balanced community – N/A 

A fairer South Lakeland – Halve the proportion of households in poverty and eliminate child 

poverty, Protecting the vulnerable and helping people out of poverty; and the delivery of 

financial advice and support to vulnerable people. 

Addressing the climate emergency – N/A 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 This report proposes two new funds designed to mitigate financial hardship and 
promote financial resilience in South Lakeland. The first will support local councils 
and community groups to develop projects to alleviate poverty and the second will 
enable partner agencies working on the frontline to provide immediate, low level, 
financial support to individuals to avert a crisis. 

 

2.0 Proposed Decision 

2.1 It is recommended that the Director of Strategy Innovation and Resources:- 

(1) Approve that a “Fairer South Lakeland Fund” – be established as outlined 
in paragraphs 3.11-3.12, to which local community organisations may bid 
for financial support to implement projects which support the 
achievement of SLDC’s aim of ‘A fairer South Lakeland, a South Lakeland 
for everyone’ and “Halve the proportion of households in poverty and 
eliminate child poverty”. The Fund be financed through the use of 
unclaimed councillor allowances in 2020/21, which have been allocated 
to a ‘Poverty Alleviation Fund’ 

(2) Agree that a single round of applications be invited, with the total of all 
awards to be contained within a total expenditure from the Fund of 
£25,000. The Operational Lead People, Welfare and Income Maximisation, 
and the Strategy Lead specialist in consultation with the Portfolio Holder 
for Health, Wellbeing and Poverty Alleviation to approve grant awards by 

Page 3

Item No.1



administrative decision in accordance with the eligibility criteria set out 
in paragraphs 3.11 – 3.12 of this report. 

(3) Subject to financial capacity remaining in the Poverty Alleviation Fund, 
delegate authority to the Operational Lead People, Welfare and Income 
Maximisation/ Strategy Lead Specialist in consultation with the Portfolio 
Holder for Health, Wellbeing and Poverty alleviation to approve a further 
bidding round. The Strategy Lead Specialist in consultation with the 
Portfolio Holder for Health, Wellbeing and Poverty Alleviation to approve 
grant awards by administrative decision. 

(4) Agree that an emergency fund be established and made available to the 
South Lakeland Building Financial Resilience Partners (as described in 
paragraph 3.14) for the support of clients in need of financial support to 
avert an immediate and serious financial crisis as set out in paragraph 
3.13. The Fund be financed through the use of unclaimed councillor 
allowances in 2020/21, which have been allocated to a ‘Poverty 
Alleviation Fund’. The Fund be established to a value of £2,000 (total) to 
be awarded to Partner Agencies with authority for the Partner Agencies 
to make payments to individual cases (based on the criteria detailed 3.14) 
being a maximum of £200 per individual/ household.  

(5) The Lead Specialist Legal Governance and Democracy (Monitoring 
Officer), Strategy Lead Specialist and the Portfolio Holder for Health, 
Wellbeing and Poverty alleviation, be authorised to approve the terms of, 
and enter into, the relevant funding agreements.  

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 A Poverty Emergency 

3.2 On 6th October 2020 South Lakeland’s Full Council meeting carried a motion to 
declare a Poverty Emergency, signed by Councillor Suzie Pye:  

  “I move that our Council pass a motion declaring a Poverty Emergency, and explore 
the feasibility of setting up a Poverty Truth Commission, working closely with our 
Morecambe Bay partners. This will aid our aim of tackling the root causes of poverty 
and inequalities, which is critical to the success of our Council Plan.”   

3.3 The Council Plan 2021 – 2026 has 4 priorities, with Priority 3 being “Delivering a fairer 
South Lakeland”. Targets include halving the proportion of households in poverty and 
eliminating child poverty. 

3.4 Compared to many parts of Cumbria and Lancashire, South Lakeland is generally 
prosperous with relatively low levels of most types of deprivation. This, however, 
masks some significant inequalities:  

• median house prices across South Lakeland are almost eight times the average annual 
household income and up to 12 times income in some parts of the district (CACI Ltd). 
and there are 4,211 households on the Social Housing Register (December 2021) 

• 6.9% of households in South Lakeland have an annual household income of under 
£10,000 and 14% of children live in low-income households (2019/20 (Cumbria 
Economy Tracker, District Level, March 2022) 

• 13% of households are in fuel poverty – driven both by low incomes and high heating 
costs in older, less well insulated homes 

• there is major variation in life expectancy across the district, with, for example women 
in Ulverston West living 7.6 years longer than women in Ulverston East (men in 
Ulverston West live 3.8 years longer).  

Page 4



3.5 The pandemic has exposed vulnerabilities in South Lakeland’s local economy with a 
high dependency on the visitor economy (including accommodation, retail, food and 
drink, transport and visitor attractions) which has been directly affected in turn having 
an impact on the network of services (professional services, catering, building 
maintenance etc) which supports the visitor economy. With Covid-19 restrictions 
having now been lifted, there are positive signs of resilience and recovery in the 
economy, although cash flow and staffing continue to be challenging for businesses.  

3.6 As a result of the uncertainty some people have found themselves at financial risk, 
often unexpectedly and suddenly. Some people are encountering the benefits system 
for the first time and having to budget and manage money carefully. They are having 
to do this in the context of the physical and mental health impacts of the Covid crisis. 
There is a need for support. 

3.7 However the cost of living crisis is worsening in 2022 which has been dubbed the 
“Year of the Squeeze” (the Resolution Foundation). The cost of living is at a 30 year 
high. The new social care levy on National Insurance, the Universal Credit uplift 
removal and the freezing of the personal income tax allowance, combined with high 
inflation, an unprecedented rise in energy bills, and a rise in the cost of basic food 
items, all will impact low-income families the most.  

3.8 The following recent news reports highlight the worsening situation in 2022: 

 Over a third (34%) of households will be unable to afford the cost of living by 
£8,600 this spring according to an analysis by the New Economics Foundation 
(NEF).  

 UK households who are “off-grid” and without access to mains gas face “a 
tsunami of poverty” as a result of rising bills, charities warn.  

 Research by the Joseph Rowntree Foundation (JRF) found the decision to 
uprate benefits by 3.1% in April - even though inflation is forecast to hit 7% - 
will cause many of the UK's poorest families to be worse off financially. It found 
around nine million households who receive benefits due to low incomes will 
be £500 worse off on average due to inflation from April. Couple families with 
children in receipt of benefits due to low income will experience a real-terms 
cut of £720 per year, while the figure across all pensioner couples is £540 per 
year, according to the analysis. 

3.9 This background highlights the need for SLDC to take immediate steps to establish the 
proposed schemes. It should be noted that the Council already has a number of 
initiatives in place to support those in poverty including:  

 significant grant funding support to Citizen’s Advice, CVS and other 3rd sector 
agencies towards supporting those with financial and other issues in South 
Lakeland   

 Council schemes including the Council Tax Reduction Scheme, Discretionary 
Housing payments, Handy Person Scheme, Disabled Facilities grants, Cold to 
Cosy referrals and the Money advice service.    

3.10 The funding for the proposed schemes in this report is from unclaimed councillor 
allowances in 2020/21, which were allocated to a Poverty Alleviation Fund. 

3.11 The Fairer South Lakeland Community Fund (see appendix 4) will provide funding 
for community projects with longer term aims to tackle poverty. It is designed to 
facilitate community networks and support hubs which will enable local people to 
access support and advice. The funding round is for South Lakeland residents in the 
2022/23 financial year – Post April 2023 the larger Westmorland and Furness Council 

Page 5



will require a wider strategy to tackle poverty across the severely deprived urban areas 
of Barrow as well as the urban and rural areas of Eden and South Lakeland.  

3.12 The funding is to benefit the local community, and we expect applicants will work with 
other funders, community organisations and agencies to maximise the impact in terms 
of reducing financial hardship. 

For example the funding could support the following (which is a non-exhaustive list and 
other projects with the purposes set out in 3.11 above may be considered in the 
discretion of the Council): 

 Community schemes/projects (e.g. community energy, repair/reuse, community food 
initiatives, community car share schemes, warm hubs and networking schemes) 

 Schemes which target the alleviation of child poverty and promote inclusion in 
mainstream activities  

 Projects to support local people in moving toward financial stability and security 

 Projects supporting vulnerable people back into work 

 Sustainable cost effective transport initiatives for example community lift-share, cycling 
and walking projects 

 Behaviour change initiatives towards sound financial management  

The Council will consider applications from Town and Parish Councils, local charities, 
community interest companies, voluntary groups and other not for profit organisations 
in South Lakeland. The proposals must have clear and measurable outputs and 
address poverty alleviation by supporting local communities and residents to become 
more sustainable and financially resilient.  Impact will be monitored on numbers of 
people participating in the schemes as well as effect on household finances.   The 
application process will include completion of an application form (see appendix 3).   

3.13 The Emergency fund is for short term financial support for individuals / residents (up 
to £200 per individual/ household) to meet immediate and severe financial need – for 
example where the individual has a job interview or hospital appointment where travel 
costs are prohibitive or the family washing machine or fridge has broken and there are 
no family savings.   

3.14 The Emergency fund (£2000 total to be split between successful agencies) will be 
allocated to partner agencies who made a case for this extra support (for example 
Citizen’s Advice, Age UK) working on the front line. The Portfolio Holder and the 
Strategy Specialist would determine allocations based on agency’s written 
submissions. An assessment would be made by the partner agency with the presenting 
client and where the need is assessed by the agency to be true and immediate (in their 
professional judgement) an award would be made by the agency to the client. The 
partner agency would first investigate all other available sources of funding and other 
support before making an award. The fund is targeted at those situations where there 
is a gap in service/ provision, and would enable the recipient to keep their head above 
water. Criteria for an award will be worked up based on existing similar arrangements 
agencies have used in the past and will be part of the agencies original submission.  
The funds should be spent within 12 months from the award allocated. 

3.15 Partner agencies include: Kendal College, Manna House, Cumbria Action for 
Sustainability, South Lakes Housing, Inspira, UCLAN, South Lakes Carers, Cumbria 
CVS, GLL (Leisure Centre), Cumbria County Council, Kendal and District Lions, 
Queen Katherine School, Age UK, Oxley Group, Citizens Advice, Kendal College, 
Kings Food Bank, Department of Work and Pensions, Morecambe Bay Health Trust,  
Kendal CAP, Springfield, GCAN/ PEAT, Pennine Community Credit Union, Waste into 
wellbeing. 

Page 6



3.16 The Emergency fund would work with agency’s own payment systems and all 
payments made would be logged and reported back to the Council via quarterly 
review meetings. This will enable an analysis of impact and outcome against our 
Council plan targets of halving the proportion of households in poverty and 
eliminating child poverty. 

 
4.0 Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 EIA 

2 HSEI IA 

3 Draft application form Fairer SL Community Fund 

4 Fairer South Lakeland Community Fund criteria and process 

 

5.0 Consultation 

5.1 The report author has consulted with the Portfolio Holder for Health, Wellbeing and 
Poverty Alleviation, Strategy Lead and Specialist Strategy officers and Director of 
Strategy, Innovation and Resources, In addition all SLDC Operational Leads have 
been contacted. There has also been consultation with Citizen’s Advice, Manna House 
and Age UK South Lakeland.  

6.0 Alternative Options 

6.1 The Council could use the allocated funding available for tackling poverty for specific 
schemes – however we have consulted with partners through the Building Financial 
Resilience Partnership and the proposed approaches have had most support. We 
believe that the present situation for many residents is such an immediate and 
serious matter that community and individual projects which support resilience and 
help avert a crisis is the best option. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 There is currently a balance of £85k in the Personal Financial Resilience reserve, 
therefore expenditure is provided within an existing budget.  

 Per 10.7 (e) of the Financial Procedure Rules each reserve has one member of staff 
that is responsible for the reserve and who can authorise any transactions from it. In 
Section 6a of the 2022/23 budget book the responsible officer is the Operational 
Lead - People, Welfare and Income Maximisation.  

 Per 10.9 of the Financial Procedure Rules this officer can authorise spend up to 
£60,000 from the reserve, Cabinet can approve spend up to £100,000 and then 
Council would have to approve any spend over £100,000. 

Human Resources 

7.2 The 2 schemes will be managed by existing officers in the Strategy and Case  

Management departments who have experience of similar schemes in the past (the 
Climate Change Community Fund and the Covid 19 Fund for example). 

Legal 

7.3 This report seeks Director approval to set up a new grant funding scheme ‘Fairer 
South Lakeland Fund’ and also an ‘Emergency Funds’ grant arrangement with 

Page 7



partner agencies.  The report also seeks delegated authority to determine grant 
applications in accordance with the eligibility criteria set out in the report and to enter 
into the appropriate funding agreements. 

7.4 Legal advice will be provided in respect of appropriate agreements for recipients of 
the Fairer South Lakeland Fund and for partner agencies in receipt of Emergency 
Funds.  

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.5 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? Yes (attached at Appendix 2) 

7.6 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: 

7.7 Summary of Health and Sustainability Impacts 

 Positive Neutral Negative Unknown 

Environment 
and Health 

Greenhouse gases 
emissions 

   X 

 Air Quality    X 

 Biodiversity    X 

 Impacts of Climate 
Change 

   X 

 Reduced or zero 
requirement for energy, 
building space, materials 
or travel 

   X 

 Active Travel    X 

Economy and 
Culture 

Inclusive and sustainable 
development 

   X 

 Jobs and levels of pay    X 

 Healthier high streets    X 

 Culture, creativity and 
heritage 

   X 

Housing and 
Communities 

Standard of housing    X 

 Access to housing    X 

 Crime    X 

 Social connectedness    X 

 

Equality and Diversity 

7.8 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? Yes (attached at Appendix 1) 

7.9 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: 

7.10 Summary of Equality and Diversity impacts 

Please indicate: P = Positive impact; 0 = Neutral; N = Negative; Enter “X” 

Age P X 0  N  

Disability P X 0  N  

Gender reassignment (transgender) P X 0  N  

Marriage & civil partnership P X 0  N  

Pregnancy & maternity P X 0  N  

Race/ethnicity P X 0  N  

Religion or belief P X 0  N  

Sex/gender P X 0  N  

Page 8



Sexual orientation P X 0  N  

Armed forces families P X 0  N  

Rurality P X 0  N  

Socio-economic disadvantage P x 0  N  

 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Projects coming forward for 
funding fail to address financial 
hardship in the community.  

Lack of desired impact Careful use of established 
fund criteria and 
monitoring of projects. 

Contact Officers 

Simon Blyth, Strategy Specialist, 01539 793262, s.blyth@southlakeland.gov.uk  

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

None  

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent Date Signed off 

Legal Services 07/04/22 21/04/2022 

Section 151 Officer 07/04/22 21/04/2022 

Monitoring Officer 07/04/22 21/04/2022 

CMT 07/04/22 07/04/2022 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist 07/04/22 

Human Resources Lead Specialist 07/04/22 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader 07/04/22 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder 07/04/22 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Note – Report authors must consult the relevant Portfolio Holder, members of the 
Corporate Management Team, the Monitoring Officer, and any other interested parties 
before a decision can be taken. If any objections are received, they must be reported 
at the meeting before the decision is taken. 

Signed by:- Title:- 

 

 

 

 

Page 9

mailto:s.blyth@southlakeland.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Appendix 1 

www.southlakeland.gov.uk 

Equality Impact Assessment Form 

Page 11

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


 

2 

Supporting a Fairer South Lakeland: 

• Poverty Alleviation Community Fund 

• Emergency fund for severe hardship  

This report proposes two new funds designed to tackle financial hardship in South 

Lakeland. The first will support local councils and community groups to develop projects to 

alleviate poverty and the second will enable partner agencies working on the frontline to 

provide immediate, low level, financial support to individuals to avert a crisis. 

Stakeholders: Town and Parish Councils, community groups and residents of South 

Lakeland. SLDC officers and members. 3rd sector organisations and members of the 

Building Financial Resilience (BFR) Partnership. 

Consultation/ engagement undertaken: Portfolio Holder for Health, Wellbeing and Poverty 

Alleviation, Strategy Lead and Specialist Strategy officers and Director of Strategy, 

Innovation and Resources, In addition all SLDC Operational Leads have been contacted. 

There has also been consultation with Citizen’s Advice, Manna House and Age UK South 

Lakeland.  

Evidence, research and other sources of information used: Data from the Cumbria 

Observatory and updates from the Cumbria Poverty Group and the BFR Partnership. 

Impacts on people 

What impacts/issues have been identified about how the proposal impacts on people? 

The impact is positive for all groups as the funds are designed to alleviate anyone in 

financial hardship – data shows some groups are more impacted than others in financial 

downturns. 

Equality action plan 
What actions will be taken to eliminate or minimise the negative impacts identified above?  

Actions Who’s responsible Completed (Date) 

N/A xxx 01/01/01 

What actions will be taken to advance equality? 

Actions Who’s responsible Completed (Date) 

The grant application form requires supporting 
equality policy evidence and the monitoring form 
asks: How did you encourage participation and take 
up of services from all groups in your community 
including reference to the protected characteristics 
under the Equality Act 2010? 

SB March 2023 

Page 12

https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/equality-act/protected-characteristics


 

3 

What actions will be taken to foster positive relations between people who share a 

protected characteristic and those who do not? 

Actions Who’s responsible Completed (Date) 

Applications which show awareness and positive 
action around equalities characteristics will be 
selected. 

SB March 2023 

Report details 

Date of report: 07/04/22 

EIA Author(s): Simon Blyth 

Director: David Sykes 

Document version number:0.1 

Date for review: March 2023 

EIA forwarded to Strategy Specialist: Yes 

Glossary 

Age: This refers to a person having a particular age (for example, 32 year-olds) or being 

within an age group (for example, 18-30 year-olds).  

Armed Forces Families: Those who have served or who are serving in the Armed Forces 

and their families. 

Civil partnership: Legal recognition of a same-sex couple’s relationship. Civil partners 

must be treated the same as married couples on a range of legal matters.  

Disability: A person has a disability if they have a physical or mental impairment which has 

a substantial and long-term adverse effect on their ability to carry out normal day-to-day 

activities. Includes: Physical/sensory disability, mental health or learning disability. 

Gender reassignment: A person has the protected characteristic of gender reassignment if 

the person is proposing to undergo, is undergoing or has undergone a process (or part of a 

process) for the purpose of reassigning the person's sex by changing physiological or other 

attributes of sex. 

Maternity: The period after giving birth. It is linked to maternity leave in the employment 

context. In the non-work context, protection against maternity discrimination is for 26 weeks 

after giving birth, including as a result of breastfeeding.  

Race: It refers to a group of people defined by their colour, nationality (including 

citizenship), ethnic or national origins. Includes, Asian, Black and White minority ethnic 

Page 13



 

4 

groups including. Eastern Europeans, Irish people and Gypsy Travellers.  

Religion or belief: “Religion” means any religion, including a reference to a lack of religion. 

“Belief” includes religious and philosophical beliefs including lack of belief (for example, 

Atheism). The category includes Christianity, Islam, Judaism, Hinduism, Buddhism, and non 

religious beliefs such as Humanism. 

Rurality: South Lakeland is defined as ‘Rural-80’ – this means we have at least 80 percent 

of our population in rural settlements and larger market towns. Issues affecting the health 

and wellbeing of rural communities include: low-paid work, unemployment of young people, 

high costs of housing and fuel poverty, poor access to health services, lack of public 

transport and poorer broadband and mobile phone network availability. Social isolation is 

also an issue especially among older people – in South Lakeland 27.7% of the population 

are aged over 65. The ageing rural population brings a number of challenges. These 

include the fact that older people often have poorer health and greater care needs, issues 

compounded by the greater distances to healthcare services and poor public transport. 

South Lakeland (2015) features most poorly in deprivation indices in “Barriers to Housing 

and Services Domain” (which relate to the physical proximity of local services, and issues 

relating to access to housing, such as affordability) and the “Living Environment Deprivation 

Domain” (The 'indoors' living environment measures the quality of housing; while the 

'outdoors' living environment contains measures of air quality and road traffic accidents. 

Sexual orientation: This is whether a person's sexual attraction is towards their own sex, 

the opposite sex or to both sexes.  

Socio-economic disadvantage: This includes people on low incomes, as well as issues 

around rural and urban deprivation, such as access to services and transport. SLDC must 

adopt effective measures to address the inequalities that result from differences in 

occupation, education, place of residence or social class. Socio-economic disadvantage 

includes: Income, employment, health, education, housing, discrimination and local 

concentrations of deprivation. 

 

Page 14



Appendix 2 

www.southlakeland.gov.uk 

Health and Sustainability Impact 

Assessment Form 

Supporting a Fairer South Lakeland: 

 Poverty Alleviation Community Fund 

 Emergency fund for severe hardship 

  

Page 15

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


 

2 

Environment and health 

Greenhouse gas emissions 

SLDC’s aim is to be carbon neutral by 2030: How will your proposal affect greenhouse gas 

emissions? 

Consider:  

Energy saving, for example preventing unnecessary use of energy - reducing use of 

appliances or cutting down on journeys that are not required. 

Improving energy efficiency - ensures that the maximum benefit is gained from energy that 

is used. For example energy is not wasted or lost through insulation, heating the right areas 

and efficient lighting. 

Renewable generation for example using renewable resources, such as wind, sunlight, 

rainwater. 

Minimising emissions from transport. 

Response:  

Grant Application form: The Council has a target for the District to be carbon neutral by 

2037 – Does your project have a plan to minimise carbon emissions? How are you using 

the waste/energy hierarchy – 1) avoid, 2) reduce, 3) reuse? 

Monitoring form: The Council has a target for the District to be carbon neutral by 2037 – 

Does your organisation have a plan to cut carbon emissions? If so please include a 

progress update and future plans. 

Alternative ways to deliver proposal 

Please show how you are addressing alternative ways of delivering your proposal with a 

reduced or zero requirement for energy, building space, materials or travel   

How are you using the waste/energy hierarchy – 1) avoid, 2) reduce, 3) reuse? 

Response:  

Grant Application form: The Council has a target for the District to be carbon neutral by 

2037 – Does your project have a plan to minimise carbon emissions? How are you using 

the waste/energy hierarchy – 1) avoid, 2) reduce, 3) reuse? 

 Air quality 

Please demonstrate how your project will have an impact on air quality. 

Response:  

Page 16



 

3 

N/A 

Biodiversity 

Please outline any impacts on biodiversity that your proposal might have  

“To halt overall biodiversity loss, support healthy well-functioning ecosystems and establish 

coherent ecological networks, (create) more and better places for nature for the benefit of 

wildlife and people”: Biodiversity 2020: A strategy for England’s wildlife and ecosystem 

services, DEFRA. 

Response:  

N/A 

Climate change impact 

How does your proposal mitigate the impacts of climate change?  

Assess the risks and impacts associated with climate change (extreme weather events: 

flooding, heatwaves, droughts and fires) and the implications for our services and 

communities. Describe measures in place to embed resilience and recovery. 

Response:  

N/A 

Active travel 

How does the proposal enable active travel?  

Encouraging and facilitating walking, cycling and public transport. 

Response:  

N/A  

Economy and culture 

Sustainable development 

How does the proposal contribute to inclusive and sustainable development? 

Response:  

The grant funding is to encourage, stimulate and support community and individual 

resilience. 

Page 17



 

4 

Pay 

How does the proposal impact on jobs and levels of pay? 

Response:  

N/A 

Healthier high streets 

Demonstrate how the proposal contributes to healthier high streets. 

Response:  

Supports personal solvency. 

Culture, creativity and heritage 

How does the proposal impact on culture, creativity or heritage and if not can they be 

embedded in this proposal? 

Response:  

Improving access to community support and promoting belonging and wellness. 

Housing and communities 

Housing standards 

Does the proposal lead to an improvement in the standard of housing? 

Response:  

Improved standards of housing could be an outcome depending on the bids received. 

Access to housing 

How does the proposal increase access to housing? 

Response:  

N/A 

Crime and fear of crime 

How does the proposal reduce crime or fear of crime? 

Response:  

Promoting community support and belonging. 

Page 18



 

5 

Social connectedness 

How does the proposal increase social connectedness? 

Response:  

Promoting community support and belonging. 

Health and sustainability impact summary 

Each category is rated either: Positive, Negative, Neutral, or unknown 

Environment and Health 

Impossible to say as the bids haven’t been received. 

Greenhouse gases emissions:  

Air Quality:  

Biodiversity:  

Impacts on climate change:  

Reduced or zero requirement for energy, building space, materials or travel:  

Active travel:  

Economy and Culture 

Inclusive and sustainable development: 

Jobs and level of pay: 

Healthier high streets:  

Culture creativity and heritage: 

Housing and communities 

Standard of housing:  

Access to housing:  

Crime:  

Social connectedness:  

Page 19



 

6 

Health and sustainability action plan 

What actions will be taken to eliminate or minimise any negative impacts identified above? 

Actions Who’s responsible Completed (Date) 

N/A xxx 01/01/01 

 

What positive actions will be taken to advance health or sustainability? 

Actions Who’s responsible Completed (Date) 

Projects will need to demonstrate sustainability SB July 2022 

Research 

Evidence, research and other sources of information used to inform the Impact 

Assessment. 

Data from the Cumbria Observatory and updates from the Cumbria Poverty Group and the 

BFR Partnership.  

Consultation 

Details of any specialists or groups that you have discussed this proposal with and the 

advice/information provided. 

The report author has consulted with the Portfolio Holder for Health, Wellbeing and Poverty 
Alleviation, Strategy Lead and Specialist Strategy officers and Director of Strategy, Innovation 
and Resources, In addition all SLDC Operational Leads have been contacted. There has also 
been consultation with Citizen’s Advice, Manna House and Age UK South Lakeland.  

 

 

 

 

Page 20



Appendix 3   

Application for Fairer South Lakeland 

Community Fund 2022 to March 2023 
 

This application is made up of 5 sections that must be completed before you submit your application.  

Please answer each question as clearly as possible.  

Who Can Apply? 

The Council will consider applications from charities, community interest companies, parish councils, 

voluntary groups and other not for profit organisations in South Lakeland.  

The funding must be spent to benefit the local community, and we expect applicants will work with other 

funders and community organisations and agencies to maximise benefit. 

Minimum and maximum awards 

Grants will be for a minimum of £500 and a maximum of £8,000 (waivered in exceptional cases). (£25,000 

total available in Round 1) 

Criteria 

The funding must be spent to benefit the local community, and we expect applicants will work with other 

funders and community organisations and agencies to maximise benefit. Projects need to support SLDC’s 

aim of ‘A fairer South Lakeland, a South Lakeland for everyone’ and “Halve the proportion of households in 

poverty and eliminate child poverty”. The fund is designed to build infrastructure and networks to enable 

communities to work together to become more sustainable and financially resilient. The fund is intended to 

provide seed funding for community projects both with longer term aims to tackle poverty and short term 

measures to meet immediate need. 

For example the funding could support: 

 Community schemes/projects (e.g. community energy, repair/reuse, community food initiatives, 

community car share schemes, warm hubs and networking schemes) 

 Projects to support local people in moving toward financial stability and security 

 Schemes which target the alleviation of child poverty and promote inclusion in mainstream activities  

 Projects supporting vulnerable people back into work 

 Sustainable cost effective transport initiatives for example community lift-share, cycling and walking 

projects 

 Behaviour change initiatives towards sound financial management  

The fund can support all types of costs relating to your project or activity, including: core costs (e.g. staff, 

office costs), project costs (e.g. venue hire, project worker) and capital costs (can support the cost of a 

renewable installation). 

Grants are targeted at Town and Parish Councils, small organisations with charitable or community focused 

aims and community groups that are based and working in South Lakeland. 

The fund will support up to a maximum of 50% of total costs (more than 50% for groups with an exceptional 

case) for the project. 

 

Page 21



Appendix 3   
We will not fund:  

 100% of your project (unless an exceptional case and at discretion of portfolio holder ) 

 Funding of general running costs of your organisation  

 Activities that fail to show how impact on alleviating poverty will be measured 

 Projects not benefiting people living in South Lakeland 

 Direct replacement of statutory obligation and public funding 

 Groups that cannot justify having significant unrestricted reserves e.g. where a Group has £10k or 

more in unrestricted reserves 

 Private members’ sports/social clubs 

 National charities/organisations 

Applications can be submitted at any time. If you have any further questions please contact us at: 

communitygrants@southlakeland.gov.uk  

 

 

Section 1: Contact details 

This section asks for the contact details of the applicant.  

1.1 Name of main contact Click here to enter text. 

1.2 Email address Click here to enter text. 

1.3 Contact Number Click here to enter text. 

Section 2: Your community group/ organisation 

This section asks for the details of your organisation. 

2.1  
Name of your 
community group or 
organisation  

Click here to enter text. 

2.2  

Community group/ 
organisation address 
including post code 
 
 

Click here to enter text. 

Click here to enter text. 

Page 22

mailto:communitygrants@southlakeland.gov.uk


Appendix 3   

 

Section 3: Your Project 

This section asks for all of the important information about your project. 

3.1 
Project Title  
(15 words maximum) 

Click here to enter text. 

3.2 
Amount of Fairer South 
Lakeland Fund applied 
for 

Click here to enter text. 

3.3 
What is the full cost of 
your project?  

Click here to enter text. 

3.4 
Why is this project 
needed?  
 

Click here to enter text. 

3.5 

What outputs would 
your project seek to 
deliver? (Details on 
expected numbers of 
individuals/ 
households supported) 
 
 

Click here to enter text. 

Click here to enter text. 

2.3 
Type of community 
group/ organisation 

Choose an item. 

If you selected Parish Council as your organisation type please skip forward to Question 2.4 

2.3.1 
Charity registration 
number (if applicable) 

Click here to enter text. 

2.3.2 

What does your 
community group/ 
organisation do?  
(50 words maximum) 

Click here to enter text. 

2.3.3 
How much is the yearly 
membership fee? (if 
applicable) 

Click here to enter text. 

2.3.4 
Please attach the governance documents of your organisation to this application 
form (e.g. constitution, terms of reference, or proof of a formalised structure) 

☐ 

2.4 

Is your community 
group/ organisation the 
accountable body for 
the project? 
 

Choose an item. 

2.4.1 
If no, who is the 
accountable body for 
the project?  

Click here to enter text. 

Page 23



Appendix 3   

3.6 

How would these 
Project outputs be 
measured? 
 

 

3.7 
If successful, who 
would deliver your 
Project and how? 

 

3.8 
If available, please attach a community plan or local survey or other evidence that 
demonstrates there is a need for your project 

☐ 

3.9 

What alternative 
options have been 
considered, and why is 
your project the most 
appropriate solution? 
 
 

Click here to enter text. 

3.10 

Are there ongoing 
maintenance costs and 
how will you cover 
them? 
 
 

Click here to enter text. 

3.11 

The Council has a target 
for the District to be 
carbon neutral by 2037 – 
Does your project have a 
plan to minimise carbon 
emissions?  
How are you using the 
waste/energy hierarchy – 
1) avoid, 2) reduce, 3) 
reuse? 

 

3.12 

What other sources of 
funding have you 
applied for, please 
state if they have been 
successful  
 
 

Source of funding Amount applied for 
Successful or 
unsuccessful 

Click here to enter 
text. 

Click here to enter 
text. 

Choose an item. 

Click here to enter 
text. 

Click here to enter 
text. 

Choose an item. 

Click here to enter 
text. 

Click here to enter 
text. 

Choose an item. 

Page 24



Appendix 3   

Click here to enter text. 

 

Section 4: Funding criteria 

This section asks for the links between your project and our funding criteria. 
Please provide supporting information on how your project will meet the criteria. 
 

4.1 

 Alleviating 
financial hardship 
in the community 

 Meeting 
immediate 
community needs 

 Halving 
household 
poverty 

 Eliminating Child 
Poverty 

 Building 
infrastructure and 
networks to 
enable 
communities to 
work together to 
become more 
sustainable and 
financially 
resilient 

Click here to enter text. 

4.2 Any other links   

 

Section 5: Project Plan 

If your bid is successful, the information that you provide here will be used in a legal agreement with 
SLDC.  

5.1 
When will your project 
start?  

Click here to enter a date. 

5.2 
When will your project 
be completed?  

Click here to enter a date. 

5.3 

If awarded, what exactly 
will the grant pay for?  
 
 

Click here to enter text. 

Page 25



Appendix 3   

5.4 

What are the key 
milestones in your 
project? 
 
 

Stage or task 
Date of 
completion 

Click here to enter text. 
Click here to 
enter a date. 

Click here to enter text. 
Click here to 
enter a date. 

Click here to enter text. 
Click here to 
enter a date. 

Click here to enter text. 

5.5 

How will you 
demonstrate that your 
project has been 
successful? (What usage 
statistics/ user feedback 
etc can you provide?) 
 
 

Click here to enter text. 

This will be monitored and you will be asked to provide more information 
after the project has been completed. 

 

 
What safe operating practices are, or will be, in place for your delivery of the Project? e.g. systems of work, 
training, monitoring, identifying and addressing safeguarding risks for young people or vulnerable adults, 
etc. 
 

 
 
 

 
Does your organisation have appropriate DBS check in place for employees and volunteers who may be 
involved in delivery of the Project? Please detail what DBS checks are in place below. 
 

 
  
 
 

 
Please confirm that all statutory approvals, land-owner consents and/or other 
permissions/authorisations required for the delivery of the Project are already 
in place:  
 

 
 
CONFIRM Y/N 

 
The Council expects those organisations that have been awarded grants to 
have appropriate Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policies in place to create an anti-
fraud culture and maintain high ethical standards in the administration of 
public funds.  A copy of the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy is 
available on the Council’s website here 
(https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/1915/anti-bribery-fraud-and-

CONFIRM Y/N 

Page 26



Appendix 3   

 

corruption-policy.pdf). Please confirm that your organisation has read and 
agrees the contents of the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy and 
adopts similar standards:  
 

 
On behalf of the organisation listed in this Application Form, I confirm that the 
organisation has in place the following documents and policies  (please 
provide a link or scanned/electronic copy): 
 

☐  Equality policy;  

 

☐  Safeguarding policy; 

  

☐ Approved final accounts for  financial year 20/21; 

 

☐ Public liability and employers’ liability insurance. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Y/N 
 
Y/N 
 
Y/N 
 
Y/N 
 

 
Declaration: I have full authority on behalf of the organisation to make this application and have read and 
agreed to the Grant Scheme Criteria and Award Terms & Conditions and have attached the required 
documents where applicable.   
 
Please note that electronic signatures/scanned signatures are acceptable. 
 

 
Signed:  
 
Date:  
 
Name in block capitals:  
 
Position in Organisation:  
 

 
Please email your completed application form with supporting information to:  
communitygrants@southlakeland.gov.uk  
 

Page 27

mailto:communitygrants@southlakeland.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



SLDC: Fairer South Lakeland Fund  
Appendix 4 
07/04/22 

 
South Lakeland District Council  Fairer South Lakeland Fund  

Purpose 

Financial grants which will enable local parish and town councils and community groups to alleviate 
financial hardship in their communities.  Provides seed funding for community projects both with longer 
term aims to tackle poverty and short term measures to meet immediate need. 

The funding must be spent to benefit the local community, and we expect applicants will work with other 

funders and community organisations and agencies to maximise benefit. 

For example the funding could support: 

 Community schemes/projects (eg community energy, repair/reuse, community food initiatives, 
community car share schemes, warm hubs and networking schemes) 

 Projects to support local people in moving toward financial stability and security 

 Schemes which target the alleviation of child poverty and promote inclusion in mainstream 
activities  

 Projects supporting vulnerable people back into work 

 Sustainable cost effective transport initiatives for example community lift-share, cycling and 
walking projects 

 Behaviour change initiatives towards sound financial management 
 

The Fund  

£25,000 - to be distributed across South Lakeland for community projects. 

The fund can support all types of costs relating to your project or activity, including: core costs (e.g. staff, 

office costs), project costs (e.g. venue hire, project worker) and capital costs (can support the cost of a 

renewable installation). 

Grants are targeted at Town and Parish Councils, small organisations with charitable or community 

focused aims and community groups that are based and working in South Lakeland. 

The fund will support up to a maximum of 50% of total costs (more than 50% for groups with an 

exceptional case) for the project. 

 

We will not fund:  

 100% of your project (unless an exceptional case and at discretion of portfolio holder ) 

 Funding of general running costs of your organisation  

 Activities that fail to show how impact on alleviating poverty will be measured 

 Projects not benefiting people living in South Lakeland 

 Direct replacement of statutory obligation and public funding 

 Groups that cannot justify having significant unrestricted reserves e.g. where a Group has £10k 
or more in unrestricted reserves 

 Private members’ sports/social clubs 

 National charities/organisations 
 

Who Can Apply? 

The Council will consider applications from Town and Parish Councils, local charities, community interest 

companies, voluntary groups and other not for profit organisations in South Lakeland.  

Page 29



SLDC: Fairer South Lakeland Fund  
Appendix 4 
07/04/22 

 
Minimum and maximum awards 

To ensure focus and impact, grants will be for a minimum of £500 and a maximum of £8,000  (waivered 

in exceptional cases). 

Context 

On 6th October 2020 in South Lakeland’s Full Council meeting a motion to declare a Poverty Emergency, 

signed by Councillor Suzie Pye, was carried:  

 “I move that our Council pass a motion declaring a Poverty Emergency, and explore the feasibility of 

setting up a Poverty Truth Commission, working closely with our Morecambe Bay partners. This will aid 

our aim of tackling the root causes of poverty and inequalities, which is critical to the success of our 

Council Plan.”   

Council Strategy: 

The Council Plan 2021 – 2026 has 4 priorities: Priority 3 is “Delivering a fairer South Lakeland”.  

Targets include:  

 Halve the proportion of households in poverty and  

 Eliminate child poverty. 
 

Compared to many parts of Cumbria and Lancashire, South Lakeland is prosperous with relatively low 

levels of most types of deprivation. 

This, however, masks some significant inequalities. Some of the key facts that illustrate this include: 

 median house prices across South Lakeland are almost seven times the average annual 
household income and up to 12 times income in some parts of the district and there are around 
4,000 households on the Social Housing Register 

 7.2% of households in South Lakeland have an annual household income of under £10,000 and 
7% of children live in low-income households 

 13% of households are in fuel poverty – driven both by low incomes and high heating costs in 
older, less well insulated homes 

 there is major variation in life expectancy across the district, with men living 3.4 years longer and 
women living 4 years longer in the least deprived areas than the most deprived areas. 
 

The Covid crisis has exposed vulnerabilities in South Lakeland’s local economy. The visitor economy 

including accommodation, retail, food and drink, transport and visitor attractions has been badly hit. 

This in turn has had an impact on the network of services; professional services, catering, building 

maintenance etc, which supports the visitor economy. 

The longer term prognosis is unclear and a lot depends on changing holidaying habits and the balance 

between increased domestic tourism and reduced international tourism. 

The full impact has yet to be felt as a lot of businesses have been in receipt of assistance through various 

grant regimes and the furlough scheme. 

Although still the lowest in Cumbria and well below national and county averages, since the beginning of 

the pandemic, unemployment in South Lakeland has nearly doubled from 1.1% to 1.9% (and the 

proportion of the working age population receiving Universal Credit has risen from 6.8% to 7.8% 

(February 2022). 

Page 30



SLDC: Fairer South Lakeland Fund  
Appendix 4 
07/04/22 

 
There is a particular concern that, as a result of the pandemic, many people are finding themselves at 

financial risk, often unexpectedly and suddenly. Many people are encountering the benefits system for 

the first time and having to budget and manage money carefully. They are having to do this in the context 

of the physical and mental health impacts of the Covid crisis. There is a need for support. 

For all of the above reasons South Lakeland has declared a poverty emergency and is implementing a 

strategy and action plan to tackle poverty and inequality.  

Procedure 

Community groups/ organisations will submit a short proposal on their project, explaining how they 

would meet the criteria and what they request from SLDC. An application form will be used to ensure all 

necessary information is supplied.  

Decision making on the scheme and awarding of grants will rest with SLDC. Proposals will be assessed by 

the Poverty Alleviation Portfolio Holder and designated officers (SB, JF, MW/ colleague). (In the event of 

the Portfolio Holder’s unavailability, the Leader will nominate an alternative Portfolio Holder). 

Criteria 

 Does the proposal address poverty alleviation through measures to support local communities 
and residents to become more sustainable and financially resilient.   

 Does the requested funding link to a clear proposal with clear and measurable outputs and do 
the costs look reasonable?  

 Match funded projects will stand a better chance of success  

 Does the proposal explain how the grant would fit with a wider package of funding if applicable? 

 Have you provided evidence of public support and community involvement?  

 Projects must be completed within one year and recognise the support of this fund in all 
publicity. 

 

Decision making 

The decision to award a grant will be made by the Strategy Lead Specialist (or an officer delegated by 

them) as an administrative decision, acting on the advice of the Portfolio Holder and officers assessing 

the proposal.  

The grant agreement will comprise: 

 An offer letter – with standard terms included. For the organisation to counter sign as an 
acceptance of the offer and terms 

 The proposal 
 

To receive the award the applicant must have their match funding in place and confirmed (Waivered in 

exceptional circumstances). 

On receipt of an accepted offer, SLDC will raise a purchase order, against which the community group will 

invoice the Council.   

Organisations will be required to provide a short written report on how the funds have been applied.  

 

 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32


	Agenda
	1 Supporting a Fairer South Lakeland:
	Supporting a Fairer South Lakeland:  - Appendix 1
	Supporting a Fairer South Lakeland:  - Appendix 2
	Supporting a Fairer South Lakeland:  - Appendix 3
	Supporting a Fairer South Lakeland:  - Appendix 4


